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8. VICTORIAN AND EDWARDIAN DAYS. THE SCHOOL

Capt. Sampson gave a talk on the School. It is useful that the first log book
of the school survives, but disappointing that this does not give many names.
The School was a National School. The National Society promoted education
from a religious point of view and was a charity organised on an Archdeaconry
basis. Money was raised and grants were given. The Forester Act of 1870 gave
all churches two years in which to build sufficient schools for the numbers
of children that required education. A rate was levied and a Board School
provided if a school was not built within that time. British Schools, run by
the British and Foreign Bible Society were non-conformist.

In Stanstead the Rector imposed a voluntary rate to pay for the building of
the school, it cost £340 and was opened in 1873. It was enlarged in 1892 to
be able to take 90 children. The average attendance was about 75, but in the
1930's this had gone down to 50. A payment of 1d a week was required for the
children to attend school. The School was later taken over by the County.
It is not sure when it closed, but the records of the National Society state
closure was proposed for 1946.

The School was run by managers, if not the Rector, then a church person
inspected the school regularly, with wages of the teacher and grants being
made as a result. The grant was sometimes reduced if standards had not been
met. Teaching was governed by articles — the basic requirements of teaching
which were laid down for Standards 1 to 6.

A general discussion continued, with Ken Theobald remembering that his
favourite class at school was Gardening — held in the plot next to the current
Rectory. The Class was held 1| day a week, taken by Mr. Creek (?) and covered
all aspects, including pruning and grafting. The girls did needlework, but
some must have also done gardening. Other classes were History, Geography,
and Religious Education for the first 45 minutes of the day. Drill was held
in the playground ~ the forerunner of physical education. The boys playground
was at the back of the school and the girls at the front, but the classes were
mixed. Six classes were in the main room, with the infants in the smaller
room, where the kitchen now is. The hours were 9 am — noon and 1.30 pm to
4pm, with playtimes both morning and afternoon. There was only one certified
teacher, with an assistant. :

Most of the children went home for lunch, but it was remenbered that in the
winter sandwiches could be eaten by the fire. There was only the one fire per
room, and pupils went row by row to get warmed up. There was no light,
although there were oil lamps hanging in the school, nobody could remember
them being lit. Water was fetched in a pail from a pump where Terra Cotta
Place is now by the bigger boys and an enamel mug was used by all.

Holidays were always at harvest-time, but don't appear from the log book to
have been in August. Ascencion Day the elder children had to attend church
" then were allowed home. There seems to have been several single days of
holidays, and a week at Easter, ten days at Christmas and two days at Whitsun
were also remembered. The school was also closed for Glemsford fair.

The teachers cane's were also remembered, a bigger one and a smaller one, but
nobody remembered girls being caned, only kept behind after school.
Children generally left school at 14, but it was possible after 13 to do half
days. From 1931/2, the age was raised to 15. Another school had to be
attended to take the Certificate, the log book mentions ‘taking some children
to Cavendish.

A grant could be given to attend Grammar School (or the Girls High School)
which included £2 a term for expenses. A bus was later provided, but until
then, pupils had to make their own way to Sudbury. costing 3s 9d. This was
also paid by grant if it could not be afforied.
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Village generally:

Electricity was put into Bretteston Hall in 1939, but not to the rest of the
village until 1949/50.

Mains water was about 1952/3, with mains sewerage in 1963.

The lower road was covered with tarmac in around 1927-30, but not the upper
road.

The village had a football team, which played on the meadow opposite
Bretteston Hall, and played in the Brent Eleigh League.




